          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          8

             -------------------------------x

          9

         10                 June 28, 1999

                            Start:  1:20 p.m.

         11                 Recess: 1:55 p.m.

         12                 City Hall

                            Committee Room

         13                 New York, New York

         14

                  B E F O R E:

         15

                         KAREN KOSLOWITZ

         16                                Chairperson,

         17

                         COUNCIL MEMBERS:   Archie Spigner

         18                                 Kathryn Freed

                                            John Sabini

         19                                 Lloyd Henry

                                            Howard Lasher

         20                                 Stephen Fiala

         21

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         217 Broadway -  Suite 511

         25              New York, New York 10007

                              (800) 756-3410

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             Andrew Eiler

          4  Chief Research Analyst

             NYC Department of Consumer Affairs

          5

             Sergeant Tuffy

          6  Legal Bureau

             New York Police Department

          7

          8

          9

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            3

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Good

          3  afternoon. Today the Committee on Consumer Affairs

          4  is holding a follow-up to our March 24th oversight

          5  hearing on the revised DARP Tow Program. We continue

          6  to hold hearings on this issue because we continue

          7  to get complaints from both towing companies and

          8  consumers about how the program works. Our primary

          9  concern in work we have done over the past several

         10  years has been to eliminate the practice of chasing

         11  by tow trucks to accident scenes. We are very happy

         12  that over the last year we have heard no reports of

         13  serious accidents involving tow trucks racing to

         14  accidents.

         15                 Unfortunately, we continue to hear

         16  complaints that people cannot get the tow companies

         17  to take their vehicles where they want them to be

         18  taken, and that tow companies are overcharging

         19  customers.

         20                 We shared these specifics prior to

         21  our last hearing and would like an update today on

         22  the actions taken by the Police Department and DCA

         23  to address these complaints.

         24                 I would like to call on the

         25  Department.
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          2                 MR. EILER: Good afternoon, Chairwoman

          3  Koslowitz, and members of the Consumer Affairs

          4  Committee. I am Andrew Eiler, Chief Research Analyst

          5  for the Department of Consumer Affairs.

          6                 Commissioner Polonetsky asked me to

          7  express his regrets for being unable to appear today

          8  and to thank you for this opportunity to appear

          9  before you at this oversight hearing on the Directed

         10  Accident Response Program.

         11                 The Commissioner also asked me to

         12  expressly assure you, assure the Committee that the

         13  Department has diligently implemented DARP as it was

         14  last revised by Local Law No. 94 or 1997 which

         15  became law on December 31, 1997. Some provisions of

         16  the local law became effective immediately; the

         17  remainder took effect six months thereafter in June

         18  1998.

         19                 Our overall conclusion is that the

         20  DARP, as revised, is working up to its potential as

         21  an accident management program. This overall

         22  conclusion is, I believe, confirmed by the specific

         23  data that we have submitted to the Committee prior

         24  to the hearing.

         25                 Rather than reciting those
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          2  statistics, I instead again thank you for the

          3  opportunity to appear before you and I would be

          4  pleased to answer your questions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

          6  Before we continue, I just want to say we are not

          7  taking any other testimony today because the last

          8  time we heard from everybody, we know what the

          9  problems are and the last time the Department of

         10  Consumer Affairs was not at the hearing and the

         11  Police Department. So, today we are going to get the

         12  whole picture of the story and then we will sit down

         13  and see what has to be done.

         14                 Before we continue, also I would like

         15  to recognize my colleague, Council Member Henry,

         16  Council Member Fiala, and Council Member Spigner.

         17                 Do you have a statement?

         18                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No,

         19  Councilwoman Koslowitz. I am here to answer

         20  questions.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: All right,

         22  well I have a lot of questions.

         23                 Why have 60 out of 71 DARP tow

         24  companies inspected failed their inspections?

         25                 MR. EILER: As best as we can tell,
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          2  the basic reasons are there is not enough storage

          3  space. The storage space is not under the control of

          4  the one tower, and another one is that the failure

          5  to have the requisite number of vehicles for the tow

          6  program. Those are the major reasons why they fail

          7  inspections.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Have they come

          9  back?

         10                 MR. EILER: There have been 24, I

         11  believe it was 24 reinspections, and I don't know

         12  exactly what the breakdown is of how many

         13  reinspections didn't pass, but there is only, out of

         14  the ones that we inspected, 11 passed into the DARP

         15  program, and the remainder of course, with the 24

         16  reinspections, they didn't. And as I said, the

         17  reasons for the failure are primarily those,

         18  although there are others that can be involved, but

         19  it is primarily inadequate storage space, not under

         20  the control of the one party and not having the

         21  requisite number of trucks.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: So that means

         23  when they failed inspections there were only 11 tow

         24  companies around that were out there?

         25                 MR. EILER: No, no. That was 11 tow
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          2  companies who have applied since the period that we

          3  are talking about that we inspected and then that is

          4  the results of those applications to be part of the

          5  DARP program.

          6                 There is something around 208, the

          7  number fluctuates, but there is about 208 companies

          8  that are currently in the DARP program.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: And you don't

         10  have the figures about how many were reinspected and

         11  --

         12                 MR. EILER: Out of the 71 inspections,

         13  24 involved reinspections, the others were

         14  individual inspections and the reinspections, I

         15  don't know of how many passed after a reinspection

         16  but of the total number of inspections that we have

         17  done, 11 resulted in passes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay, I would

         19  like to get that number.

         20                 MR. EILER: Of how many reinspections

         21  didn't pass?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Yes.

         23                 MR. EILER: Okay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Your data

         25  indicates that almost one-third of DARP tows in
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          2  Queens and Staten Island resulted in multiple

          3  dispositions. What is a multiple disposition? And

          4  why can't you determine whether or not a DARP tow

          5  was used in this type of disposition?

          6                 MR. EILER: A multiple disposition is

          7  a job that has maybe an arrest that goes along with

          8  a vehicle accident or perhaps a person is removed to

          9  a hospital and we capture data on the priorities

         10  disposition, either the arrest or the removal of a

         11  person to a hospital. The tow is secondary to

         12  completing the assignment, therefore, the people who

         13  programmed the 911 system only captured the priority

         14  disposition. I don't have an answer why that was

         15  done that way, it is just the way that the system

         16  was designed by the computer programmer.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: When someone

         18  is taken to the hospital, I think there certainly

         19  should be a follow-up, because that becomes, you

         20  know, a little more serious.

         21                 MR. EILER: The accident itself is

         22  investigated, and the proper procedures are

         23  followed. We are not saying that the proper

         24  procedures aren't followed, we are saying that we

         25  don't capture the specific disposition of what the
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          2  tow truck is.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: You don't feel

          4  that we have to?

          5                 MR. EILER: I don't have an opinion

          6  one way or another. I have to live with the system

          7  that the computer programmers gave me.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Yes, well I

          9  personally feel that it is important to check up and

         10  see what happened.

         11                 We have received complaints that DARP

         12  tow companies are refusing to take motorists to the

         13  location of their choice, and even some stories

         14  suggesting intimidation of motorists. What training

         15  are the police receiving to ensure that they know

         16  what the tow company's obligations are in regards to

         17  towing vehicles to the motorist's choice of

         18  location?

         19                 And just today we had a story, and

         20  not only did we have a story, we heard, because the

         21  person called us and we personally heard the abuse

         22  of the tow company to the motorist, trying to get

         23  his car. It was Friday, he brought the car in, and

         24  they were closing and they gave some kind of an

         25  excuse and they didn't do it, and to boot he had to
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          2  pay four days towing charges from Friday to Monday

          3  for storage and today when the car was supposed to

          4  be moved to his choice, he was being abused.

          5                 How does the motorist get this

          6  message out? How does the motorist deal with this?

          7  Or how are you dealing with it?

          8                 MR. EILER: We inform the motorist of

          9  his rights as a consumer. I don't understand the

         10  question.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: To inform the

         12  police officers that are enforcing this, what are

         13  the consumer's rights? Because obviously the police

         14  officer does not know.

         15                 MR. EILER: The police officer does

         16  not enforce the consumer laws at the scene of an

         17  accident. The police officer's priority at the scene

         18  of an accident is to do a proper investigation so

         19  that people are removed to hospitals expeditiously

         20  and to resume the proper flow of traffic at an

         21  intersection. And the consumer guidelines that were

         22  written by the Department of Consumer Affairs

         23  includes a proper notification to the motorist,

         24  based on the receipt that he gets from the towing

         25  company.
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          2                 So, the police officer at the scene

          3  of an accident is busy with other things to take

          4  care of and he is not going to read verbatim the

          5  notice that is on the back of the tow receipt of the

          6  motorist.

          7                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: If I might

          8  interject. Part of the situation there is the police

          9  officer is not present at tow yard. I think the

         10  issue that you are talking about is when the

         11  consumer goes back to get the vehicle out of the tow

         12  yard.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: No, it was

         14  originally where it was towed. It was Friday that it

         15  was towed to this place and the person wanted it

         16  towed to their place, and they said no, it is Friday

         17  afternoon, it is 4:00, we are closing, and that was

         18  it. The consumer was on their own. There was no one

         19  there.

         20                 I mean, in other words, what you are

         21  saying to me, whatever happens at the accident, and

         22  the tow company takes the truck, the consumer has no

         23  recourse after they leave the scene of the accident

         24  with the tow truck. They have no recourse.

         25                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: With whom? With
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          2  the Police Department?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Right. I mean,

          4  what is the -- you are telling me that the Police

          5  Department is only enforcing it at the scene of the

          6  accident, there is no follow-up, there is no

          7  check-up, so the person leaving the scene, having

          8  the car towed to this place and the place refusing

          9  to tow it to the choice of the consumer, so what is

         10  this program all about?

         11                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Without getting

         12  in the specifics of this particular case, where was

         13  the consumer asking the car to be towed?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: To their

         15  garage.

         16                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes, but where

         17  in the City? I mean, was it a distance?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: In Queens.

         19                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes, but was it

         20  in the same count as the accident? Was the accident

         21  in Queens and was the garage in Queens?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: It doesn't

         23  matter. They are required to take it. It does not

         24  matter.

         25                 MR. EILER: The only thing on this, I
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          2  mean it is tough to deal with the details of the

          3  case, but with regard to --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: But this isn't

          5  the only case. We have heard other cases. I mean,

          6  this is not the only case that is happening. This

          7  just happened today. There are other people, I get

          8  calls constantly from people telling me that it is

          9  not working.

         10                 MR. EILER: Well, in terms of what the

         11  police could do, the question would be whether or

         12  not the consumer at the scene of the accident

         13  informed the police officer who was there, look, I

         14  want this car towed to X place and they are refusing

         15  to tow it there, what is the situation. Did that

         16  happen? And what was the police response, so far and

         17  so on? That is one set of issues that one could

         18  address.

         19                 The other set of issues is that

         20  whatever happened at the accident scene, the car was

         21  towed to the place where the tower was, and then

         22  afterwards the consumer wanted to move it somewhere

         23  else and then he got into an altercation about what

         24  the tower wanted to do with the vehicle at that

         25  point. That would be a very different set of facts
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          2  with a very different set of responses by the Police

          3  Department and other people. The Police Department

          4  would not be at the tow yard, although conceivably

          5  they could intervene at the scene of the accident if

          6  the consumer had said something to the police about

          7  the problem. And we don't know -- I mean, it is not

          8  clear what the situation was in terms of where the

          9  intervention could have come from.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: But we worked

         11  on the bill together, and it seems to me that once

         12  the consumer leaves the scene of an accident, they

         13  are basically on their own. So really what this is

         14  telling me is that -- I don't know what we did, we

         15  didn't protect the consumer. I mean that is the way

         16  I see it.

         17                 Why, again, if a consumer is in an

         18  accident, they have the aggravation about being in

         19  an accident, and now they have aggravation about

         20  getting their car to where they want it to be, and

         21  this was all part of the bill. So, we are only doing

         22  half the bill. The half once they leave the

         23  accident, and the other half of what is supposed to

         24  happen, they are on their own.

         25                 I feel kind of responsible, because I
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          2  am part of this bill.

          3                 MR. EILER: Well, part of the thing

          4  is, since we can't put someone in every location,

          5  the thing is that if a problem happens the consumer

          6  would need to get in touch with us, or someone to

          7  notify us, on the issue that is involved that we can

          8  intervene.

          9                 In the absence of the consumer

         10  notifying us that there is a problem, there is now

         11  way that we can respond or intervene or do anything.

         12                 And one of the kind of things is we

         13  have a letter that we have gone -- where it involved

         14  a tow situation where the car was towed to the wrong

         15  place, and after the consumer notified us we

         16  contacted the tow company, based on their response

         17  they indicated, yes, they made a mistake, and they

         18  gave us a story and they promised to refund the

         19  second tow charge.

         20                 They didn't refund the second tow

         21  charge, the check didn't come in the mail, it is due

         22  in the mail. So, finally we notified the consumer,

         23  okay, it doesn't look like he is going to refund the

         24  money, we have to go to a hearing, and that is the

         25  only way to proceed with this. We have not yet heard
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          2  back from the consumer whether or not the consumer

          3  wants to go to a hearing with it.

          4                 So, I mean the mechanism is in place.

          5  If consumers contact us and are willing to proceed

          6  to address the issue, but everything has to fall

          7  into place to make it work.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: That was a

          9  complaint that we had given you at the last hearing.

         10                 MR. EILER: That's correct. And we

         11  went in and we handled it. We contacted the company,

         12  we obtained the resolution on it, they promised to

         13  do something, and the next step we have if they are

         14  not carrying through with it is to take it to a

         15  hearing.

         16                 What we do need in situations like

         17  that is the consumer to testify. Because otherwise

         18  we have nothing to proceed on.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Did you have a

         20  receipt that they were overcharged?

         21                 MR. EILER: Well, the complaint that

         22  was filled out indicated -- in effect, the response

         23  that we got, the tow company essentially admitted

         24  that, yes, they were going to refund the money

         25  because there was a misunderstanding and so forth
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          2  and so on with respect to what the issues were. That

          3  is what they alleged. But they were going to refund

          4  the second towing charge and the check never came.

          5  Now, we are prepared to go forward with the case,

          6  but we have to find out what the consumer wants to

          7  do.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Why do you

          9  need the consumer, if you have all of the data?

         10                 MR. EILER: Well, in order to proceed

         11  to a hearing, we need to have the consumer tell us

         12  that he is going to be willing to testify. If we go

         13  to a hearing, we are going to have to have some

         14  evidence, and we are going to have to have the

         15  consumer testify to the facts of the situation.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: But if the tow

         17  company is admitting that he is willing to give back

         18  the money, then that to me is an admission of

         19  something.

         20                 MR. EILER: Well, I am not sure

         21  whether, you know, based upon just the paperwork

         22  this would be a legal kind of issue with regard to a

         23  particular complaint in terms of what the status of

         24  it would be. I am not prepared to address that

         25  question with that kind of detail. But in terms of
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          2  what is adequate, I mean that would be the legal

          3  determination that would have to be made in terms of

          4  whether the information that we have would be

          5  adequate. Because it is conceivable that the tow

          6  company would say that we made that as a goodwill

          7  gesture not admitting any liability. And you know,

          8  they could certainly bring that up as a defense and

          9  if the consumer didn't testify I don't know what

         10  kind of a case we would have.

         11                 I mean, I don't know what the status

         12  of the situation would be with regard to how we

         13  could proceed with it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I am very,

         15  very frustrated right now because I feel that we

         16  have waited a couple of months to get answers and I

         17  don't feel like I am getting answers. I feel like I

         18  am in quicksand and I thought today I would get out

         19  of the quicksand but it seems that I am not. And I

         20  don't like the feeling. I don't like what I am

         21  hearing.

         22                 I mean, my feeling is this is the

         23  Consumer Affairs Committee and I am trying and I

         24  think we all sat down to help the consumer. You

         25  know, I don't see that the consumer is being helped.
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          2  It sounds like the tow company who is towing these

          3  vehicles, they have sort of like the upper hand and

          4  once again the consumer is the victim. I mean, that

          5  is exactly how I see it.

          6                 Someone is in an accident, they have

          7  their car towed, they have to beg for their car to

          8  be taken out, they are overcharged, and now in order

          9  to get everything done, now maybe they have to lose

         10  a day's work to go to a hearing, and a day's pay to

         11  go to a hearing. There is something wrong with this

         12  picture. I am not getting a good picture.

         13                 Does anybody have any questions?

         14                 Council Member Fiala.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thank you,

         16  Madam Chair.

         17                 Just clarify for me, the police

         18  officer arrives at the scene and a tow is needed,

         19  what type of quality controls exist in the

         20  Department? And this is done on a rotational basis,

         21  so you go from A to Z?

         22                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes, I am in an

         23  accident, and a rotational list is maintained at our

         24  Communications Unit, and it is computer generated

         25  and what happens is the next available tow truck
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          2  company in that zone pops up on the dispatcher's

          3  computer screen. We make a notation to that company.

          4  If the company is available and responds, then he

          5  gets the job. If the company does not respond to our

          6  request for a tow truck, that company goes down to

          7  the bottom of the list and the next company is

          8  called, and it is done rotationally via a computer

          9  program.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: So there is no

         11  discretion on the part of the officer at the scene?

         12                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: All right,

         14  thank you.

         15                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Are there

         17  other questions?

         18                 I don't have any other questions. I

         19  just am totally frustrated by this, and we are just

         20  going to have to work something out to make this

         21  work, that I feel comfortable that the consumer is,

         22  you know, that this program that we did together is

         23  also helping the consumer.

         24                 MR. EILER: We are ready to do

         25  whatever we can to -- I mean, we are trying to make
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          2  the program work within its parameters, and we are

          3  doing what we can to do that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I mean, I

          5  don't want to feel that there are certain companies

          6  out there, and that has been a big complaint, that

          7  is grabbing all of the business and that the

          8  consumer doesn't have the right to be able to bring

          9  it to the company of their choice, which is what was

         10  supposed to be.

         11                 We don't want to make some people fat

         12  and other people skinny. We want everybody to be the

         13  same size.

         14                 SERGEANT TUFFY: If I could just

         15  interject, Madam Chair. I am Sergeant Tuffy, NYPD

         16  Legal Bureau.

         17                 One of the problems in investigating

         18  these things is that sometimes the issue doesn't

         19  come to the forefront until it is too late to follow

         20  up on the facts. In this instance it sounds as

         21  though that is not the case. We are becoming aware

         22  of it less than 48 hours after it happens. That

         23  there is an opportunity here to do an investigation

         24  and a follow-up and get a hold of the consumer the

         25  way you got a hold of the consumer, there is a good
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          2  chance that we can address this situation in this

          3  case. And what we have to do and what we are

          4  continuing to do is try to enlighten the public to

          5  the fact that they have to utilize resources, the

          6  Department of Consumer Affairs. If your staff wants

          7  to give us the information in this case, we will

          8  gladly do what has to be done to address this

          9  situation.

         10                 On a broader basis also --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I understand

         12  what you are saying, but I want to make sure that if

         13  we have done something, I want to make sure that the

         14  consumer knows their rights. I mean, really, like I

         15  said before, what we have done is there are people

         16  out there that are taking the cars to their shops,

         17  they are refusing to release them to bring them, you

         18  are telling me that -- have you gotten complaints at

         19  Consumer Affairs about this?

         20                 MR. EILER: The complaints that we

         21  have gotten, we have difficulty tracking complaints

         22  by type of complaint, but from the people who handle

         23  them, that is not a very high -- I mean, no one from

         24  an experienced standpoint calls those kind of

         25  complaints.
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          2                 The type of complaints involving DARP

          3  program participants are more likely to overcharges

          4  or failure to accept a credit card, those are the

          5  primary complaints that we receive. It is not the

          6  kind that hasn't been towed to where I want it to,

          7  this, that or the other complaints that we are

          8  getting.

          9                 We have had approximately 50, 60

         10  complaints against DARP companies that we have sort

         11  of -- it is a rough estimate, because, again, our

         12  data system doesn't track by type of program

         13  participant, we just have the statistics about tow

         14  companies. So, it is a rough estimate as to what

         15  portion of all complaints involve DARP companies.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: How many

         17  violations did you write out of the 60?

         18                 MR. EILER: Of the 60?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Of the

         20  complaints that you got.

         21                 MR. EILER: You mean how many of those

         22  complaints went to hearing and violations?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: No, how many

         24  violations did you write out of the 60?

         25                 MR. EILER: I have not picked out any
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          2  of the printouts we have gotten, we haven't followed

          3  through because they are not DARP violations as

          4  such, and therefore when we run the violations we

          5  look for DARP program issues, and we didn't run the

          6  violations for other than DARP, because we would not

          7  have to identify programs, in other words, we would

          8  not be able to identify the kind of company who got

          9  the complaint, so we didn't run those numbers.

         10                 But one of the things that I did

         11  check with the person who handles the complaints is

         12  that typically with the refusal to accept credit

         13  cards, the typical step is that before -- if that is

         14  a complaint, we contact the consumer and ask are you

         15  prepared to go through a hearing with this. And

         16  typically there is no response. The consumer is mad

         17  enough to complain, but he ends up not being mad

         18  enough to go to a hearing on it. And without going

         19  to a hearing, you can't write a violation because we

         20  have no case.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: But how are we

         22  checking the companies that are on DARP?

         23                 How are they being checked?

         24                 MR. EILER: Well, the procedure is

         25  they are supposed to accept credit -- they have on
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          2  file with us their statement saying which credit

          3  card they accept. We certainly track that. And every

          4  one of the companies has that statement on file,

          5  otherwise they wouldn't be in the program.

          6                 Now, the question in a particular

          7  situation does the person accept the credit card or

          8  doesn't he? If the consumer complains, then of

          9  course there is a possibility of --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I am not

         11  talking about credit cards right now. I am talking

         12  about how do we know that the company is obeying the

         13  law, the DARP law?

         14                 Have you removed anybody from the

         15  DARP program because they haven't been --

         16                 MR. EILER: Four companies have been

         17  removed from the program as a result of hearings

         18  within the last year.

         19                 I think I gave you this, I don't

         20  remember it off hand, but I think it is somewhere

         21  around 117 -- well, 117 charges were written for

         22  violation of DARP program requirements, and we held

         23  hearings. Okay, we had 133 hearings held involving

         24  DARP participants and of those 133 hearings, 77 were

         25  found guilty and 56 were disposed of without guilty
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          2  findings. So, it is about 60 percent of the hearings

          3  resulted in guilty findings, most of which were with

          4  fines. Four of them resulted from people being

          5  removed from the program.

          6                 So, I mean we have proceeded with

          7  these hearings as they come in and we have gone with

          8  them.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Well, I feel

         10  that there is just something amiss here and I really

         11  would like to look into it and see what can be done.

         12  Because I don't feel comfortable that the consumer

         13  is being protected. I don't. I am not comfortable

         14  with that at all. I feel we worked very hard on this

         15  and a lot of people suffered from this and I want to

         16  make sure that this works well, or it doesn't work.

         17  And I feel that I want to look into this more, okay?

         18                 Are there any other questions?

         19                 (No response.)

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I just want to

         21  mention we have been joined by Council Member Freed

         22  and Council Member Lasher was here and Council

         23  Member Sabini.

         24                 No other questions? Thank.

         25                 You very much.
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          2                 MR. EILER: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: This meeting

          4  is adjourned.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 1:55 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 28th day of June 1999.
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